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whether willful violations of NRC
requirements had occurred. Based on
the NRC inspection and OI
investigation, it appears that Mr.
William G. Kimbley, owner of Midwest
Testing, deliberately violated NRC
requirements by:

(1) Allowing operators to use moisture
density gauges without personnel
monitoring devices between December
24, 1991, and August 25, 1993, in
violation of Condition 18.A of License
No. 13–24866–01 (expired on March 31,
1992) and Condition 20.A of License
No. 13–24866–02 (issued on August 19,
1992);

(2) Not performing leak tests of two
moisture density gauges between
August 19, 1992, and July 31, 1993, in
violation of Condition 13.A of License
No. 13–24866–02;

(3) Not requesting a license
amendment to name a new Radiation
Protection Officer, in violation of
Condition 11 of License No. 13–24866–
02, when the individual named on the
License left Midwest Testing in October
1993;

(4) Storing licensed material at an
unauthorized location since March 1994
in violation of Condition 10 of License
No. 13–24866–02 and 10 CFR 30.34(c);
and

(5) Allowing moisture density gauges
to be used between April 1, 1992, and
August 19, 1992, with an expired
license in violation of 10 CFR 30.3 and
10 CFR 30.36(c)(1) (i) and (iii).

In addition, it appears that Ms. Joan
Kimbley, General Manager and
Treasurer of Midwest Testing, Inc.,
deliberately violated Items (1), (2), and
(5) above. These actions appear to have
been a result of Midwest Testing, Inc.
financial constraints, inexperience of
the General Manager and, in general, a
lack of appreciation on the part of the
Owner and the General Manager of the
regulatory significance and
consequences of the violations.

A Confirmatory Action Letter was
issued to the Licensee on March 21,
1994, confirming that the Licensee
would secure its moisture density
gauges in locked storage until the
Licensee: (1) Designated a Radiation
Protection Officer, (2) obtained NRC
approval via a license amendment for its
designated Radiation Protection Officer
and its current moisture density gauge
storage location, (3) demonstrated that
all its moisture density gauges were
appropriately tested for leakage, and (4)
demonstrated that personnel radiation
monitoring devices were provided for
those persons designated to use
moisture density gauges. The Licensee
did not use its moisture density gauges

after issuance of the Confirmatory
Action Letter.

Subsequently, an Order Suspending
License (Effective Immediately) was
issued to the Licensee on August 26,
1994, for nonpayment of fees, which
required: (1) The Licensee to suspend
NRC licensed activities and dispose of
its licensed material; and (2) NRC
termination of License No. 13–24866–02
following disposal of the licensed
material. The Licensee disposed of its
licensed material in December 1994.
NRC Region III verified that the licensed
material was properly transferred to
authorized recipients.

III
A transcribed enforcement conference

was conducted between the NRC and
the Licensee on March 15, 1995, to
discuss the apparent violations, their
causes and safety significance. Mr.
Kimbley stated during the enforcement
conference, ‘‘And the question about
would we ever pursue an NRC license
again, the answer to that is no. If there
is any way I can give you assurance of
that, I’ll be glad to do that.’’ Ms.
Kimbley stated during the Enforcement
Conference, ‘‘Like we stated earlier, we
don’t intend to continue with any
licensed material in the future.’’

Further, in a telephone conversation
on May 2, 1995, with Mr. Paul Pelke,
NRC Region III, Mr. and Ms. Kimbley
agreed to the provisions and to the
issuance of this Order to resolve all
matters pending between them.
Specifically, Mr. Kimbley agreed, for a
period of five years from the date he
signs this Confirmatory Order, that Mr.
Kimbley, Midwest Testing, Inc., or any
successor entity wherein Mr. Kimbley is
an authorized user, radiation safety
officer, owner, an officer, or a
controlling stockholder, will not apply
to the NRC for a new license, nor shall
Mr. Kimbley, Midwest Testing, Inc., or
a successor entity, as described above,
engage in licensed activities within the
jurisdiction of the NRC for that same
period of time. Ms. Kimbley agreed, for
a period of five years from the date she
signs this Confirmatory Order, that Ms.
Kimbley, Midwest Testing, Inc., or any
successor entity wherein Ms. Kimbley is
an authorized user, radiation safety
officer, owner, an officer, or a
controlling stockholder, will not apply
to the NRC for a new license, nor shall
Ms. Kimbley, Midwest Testing, Inc., or
a successor entity, as described above,
engage in licensed activities within the
jurisdiction of the NRC for the same
period of time.

I find that the Licensee’s
commitments as stated in the May 2,
1995 conversation with Paul Pelke, NRC

Region III, are acceptable and necessary
and conclude that with these
commitments the public health and
safety are reasonably assured. In view of
the foregoing, I have determined that the
public health and safety require that the
Licensee’s commitments be confirmed
by this Order.

IV
Accordingly, pursuant to sections 81,

161b, 161i, and 186 of the Atomic
Energy Act of 1954, as amended, and
the Commission’s regulations in 10 CFR
2.202, and 10 CFR part 30, it is hereby
ordered that:

1. For a period of five years from the
date Mr. William G. Kimbley signs this
Confirmatory Order, Mr. Kimbley,
Midwest Testing, Inc., or any successor
entity wherein Mr. Kimbley is an
authorized user, radiation safety officer,
owner, an officer, or a controlling
stockholder will not apply to the NRC
for a new license, nor shall Mr.
Kimbley, Midwest Testing, Inc., or a
successor entity, as described above,
engage in licensed activities within the
jurisdiction of the NRC for that same
period of time.

2. For a period of five years from the
date Ms. Joan Kimbley signs this
Confirmatory Order, Ms. Kimbley,
Midwest Testing, Inc., or any successor
entity wherein Ms. Kimbley is an
authorized user, radiation safety officer,
owner, an officer, or a controlling
stockholder, will not apply to the NRC
for a new license, nor shall Ms.
Kimbley, Midwest Testing, Inc., or a
successor entity, as described above,
engage in licensed activities within the
jurisdiction of the NRC for that same
period of time.

3. Mr. Kimbley, Ms. Kimbley,
Midwest Testing, Inc., or any successor
entity, as described above, waive the
right to contest this Order in any
manner, including requesting a hearing
on this Order.

The Regional Administrator, NRC
Region III, may relax or rescind, in
writing, any of the above conditions
upon a showing by the Licensee, Mr.
William G. Kimbley, or Ms. Joan
Kimbley of good cause.

V
Any person adversely affected by this

Confirmatory Order, other than the
Licensee, Mr. William G. Kimbley, and
Ms. Joan Kimbley may request a hearing
within 20 days of its issuance. Any
request for a hearing shall be submitted
to the Secretary, U.S. Nuclear
Regulatory Commission, ATTN: Chief,
Docketing and Service Section,
Washington, D.C. 20555. Copies also
shall be sent to the Director, Office of


